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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST2021

 

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the
purposesof both a Trustees’ report and a directors' report under companylaw.

The Trust commencedin operation from the 1 March 2018.

The Multi Academy Trust (the Trust) operates 3 primary, 3 secondary and 2 special academiesin. Its
academies have a combined pupil capacity of 4,825 and had a roll of 4,895 across the academies on 31st
August 2021. Our academies are popular and often oversubscribed.
The principal activity of the Trust is the operation of eight academies asfollows:

Hadley Learning Community, Secondary Phase - NOR 1,031.

Hadley Learning Community, Primary Phase - NOR 704including nursery provision
Ercall Wood Academy - NOR 897
Charlton Secondary School - NOR 1,175

Queensway - NOR 120
Wrekin View Primary School - NOR 425
Severndale Academy - NOR 410
Crudgington Primary School - NOR 133eo

e
e
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@
@
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Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

TheTrust is a charitable companylimited by guarantee and an exemptcharity.

The charitable company's Trust deed is the primary governing documentof the Trust.

The Trustees of Learning Community Trustare also the directors of the charitable companyfor the purposesof
companylaw.

The charitable company is known as Learning Community Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included
in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members'liability

' Each memberof the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable companyin
the eventof it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as maybe required, not exceeding £10, for the debts andliabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member.

c. Trustees’ indemnities

There are no disclosures with regard to qualifying third party indemnity provisions.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Structure, governance and management(continued)

d. Method of recruitment and appointmentor election of Trustees

Ourinaugural Trustees wereall appointed as the Trust was set up and incorporated in 2017. The Trustees were
approved as part of the application process with the Department of Education to ensure we hada strong board
with a wide range ofskills and expertise in education and school improvementbutalso in finance, HR and the

business sector.

Weare very fortunate in that all our original Trustees completed their first four years of office and apart from
one, who due to work commitments has become a Member, haveall committed to a second period of office.

This provides superb consistency as the highest level of Trust Governance.

Wehave recruited three additional Trustees, giving a total of 12, to ensure we have capacity at Trust Board
level matched to our growth which further increases the expertise of the Board. The recruitment process of

Trustees is managed by the Chair and Members and mayinclude advertisementor a direct approach.
Wehave 5 members,one of whom is the Chair of the Board of Trustees. From December2021 only 1 Member

(Chair) will also be a Trustee. The Members may agree unanimously in writing to appoint such additional
Members as they think fit and may unanimously (save that the agreement of the Member(s) to be removed

shall not be required)in writing agree to remove any such additional Members.

When a vacancyarises, the Members and Trusteeswill seek to make an appointment that would maximise the
relevant skills and experience on the Board as a whole and enable it to comprise appropriately qualified and

experienced Trustees.

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Following initial induction into the Trust, training and induction provided for new Trustees and Governors has
depended ontheir existing experience and knowledge. The Trust has provided additionaltraining and briefing
for Trustees as part of our meeting structure on areas such as data analysis and school improvement
strategies. All Trustees are supported and provided with the information needed (including reports, policies,

minutes, budgets, etc.) to effectively undertake their role as Trustees. All papers for meetings are sent out well
in advance of meetings so Trustees have time to review the documents and preparefor the meetings, Trustees

have accessto the Chair and Executive at any time.

We haveheld several joint visioning session with Members and Trustees to develop the vision and strategy for

the Trust which is now part of our documentation.

As part of our wider commitment to open governance, wehold an annualjoint meeting with all Governors from
all our academies to maintain good communicationsatall levels of Governance and ensure Governorsare part
of the vision and strategy for the Trust. It is an opportunity to update Governors on the key developments and
challenges for the Trust, our growth strategy as well as provide training and support on key areas of

Governance.

The Chair of the Trust and CEO meets with the Chairs of our Local Governing Bodies termly to provide a forum
for discussion and consultation, and the Executive or Trustees are able to attend LGB meetings as appropriate.
There is a programmeoftraining for Governors as part of the service the Trust buys from Telford and Wrekin.
All Trustees and Governors have had very recent safeguarding training to ensure they are very clear on their
responsibilities and have up to date knowledge on safeguarding. There wasalsofurthertraining by an Ofsted
Inspector on the Ofsted EIF, so they have a clear understanding of the framework and their responsibilities as
Governors and Trustees.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST2021

 

Structure, governance and management(continued)

f. Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees comprise those persons appointed underthe Articles of Association as described earlier
herein. Trustees delegate specific responsibilities to the Business and Personnel Committee, Audit and Risk
and Local Governing Bodies, the activities of which are reported to and discussed at the Board of Trustees’
meetings.

Day to day managementof the company is undertaken by the Chief Executive Officer supported by the Chief
Operating Officer. The day to day running of each Academyis undertaken by the Principal or Head Teacher
supported by their Senior Leadership Team.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer, and the Chief Operating Officer is the Chief Finance
Officer. To support our academies with their budget, manage growth and effectively implement all financial
controls. The Trust has a central finance team that is managed by the Head of Finance, whoreportsdirectly to
the COO. The team comprises of 4 Finance Officers that support multiple academies. In addition to the central
finance team the Trust has Operational Managers that work across academies supporting Heads in all
operational activities whilst delivering Trust required outcomes. In addition there is a dedicated Trust Site
Managerthat supports smaller academieswith all Estate matters.

g. Pay policy for key managementpersonnel

The Trustees make determinations of pay in accordancewith the Trust's Pay Policy. The Board of Trustees has
fully delegated powers andis established in accordance with the appropriate school governanceregulations.

The Trust Executive Team and our Academy Principals/Headteachers and their Senior Leadership Teams are

the key managementpersonnelof the Trust. Three Trustees are also Directors and therefore play a significant
role in supporting the Trust. Trustees receive no pay or other remuneration in respectof their role as Trustees.

The Board of Trustees sets the pay of the Chief Executive Officer annually. The Chief Executive Officer must
demonstrate sustained high quality of performance, with particular regard to leadership, management and
school improvement across the Trust's schools. Pay of Trust Principals/Headteachers and Senior Leadership
team members are also set by the Board of Trustees again having regard to performance against previously
agreed objectives and recommendations made by the Chief Executive Officer.

h. Connected organisations, including related party relationships

The Trust is not part of any other networks, charities and organisations which impact on the Trust's operating
policies.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021
 

Structure, governance and management(continued)

i. Engagement with employees(including disabled persons)

LCT is committed to high levels of support and engagement with our employees. They have been consulted on
issues through our meeting structure and line management systems. Staff are regularly updated through staff
meetings, regular correspondence, and emails from the Principal and Headteachers as well as regular updates
from the CEO. The Trust carries out exit interviews for all staff leaving the organisation and has adopted a

procedure of upward feedback for senior management and the Trustees.

The Trust has a numberofdetailed policies in relation to all aspects of personnel matters including:

Staff Code of Conduct
Whistleblowing policy
Attendance at Work Policy

Paypolicies
Appraisal policy
Equal opportunities policy
Volunteers’policy

Health & safety policye
e
e

fe
©

@
©

@

In accordance with the Trust's equal opportunities policy, the Trust has long established fair employment
practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabledstaff.

Full details of these policies are available from the Trust's offices.

j. Engagementwith suppliers, customers and others in a businessrelationship with the Trust

The Trust has formed excellent relationships with service providers and customers (pupils and parents).

The Trust has built up over a number of years excellent working relationships with our suppliers which has

helped deliver excellent quality and professionalism for services amongst our schools. Some of the key

engagementsincludes:

. Telford & Wrekin Council — Delivery of Human Resources and payroll, ICT managedservices, Health &

Safety audits, GDPR audits, Catering and cleaning
Mitie Facilities Management — Facilities Management and project management across PFI schools

Brown Jacobson — Legal advice and support
WRPartners — Accountancyand audit services

Barker Associates — Building and project managementconsultancy

k. Trade unionfacility time

The Trust does not have any employees who undertake this role currently. It can be noted that the Trust
maintains positive relationships with all Trade Unions and has an established Trade Union Forum which meets
termly comprising of Telford & Wrekin and Shropshire representatives from the teaching and support staff
Trade Unions. The Chair of the Forum rotates annually between the Trust and the Trade Unions. There are
Trade Union representatives on the staff of all our academies and LCT is committed to ensuring all staff are

well represented.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Objectives and activities

a. Vision and aims

Wehave single clear vision for our Trust which is “To provide an outstanding education for all of our
children and young people that prepares them to be successful in all they do both now andin the
future”.

We keepourfive key aimsat the forefrontof all we do, they represent our values as well as our intentions:

To focus, across our schools, on excellence by achieving the best possible educational outcomesfor
our children and students by engaging and inspiring them, building their resilience and preparing
them for work and adult life.

To drive a collaborative culture across our schools which drives and supports improvement and
developsall our staff as leading professionals.

To provide the highestlevels of care and support for our children so they can succeed,including those
that are the most disadvantaged,vulnerable or with special needs in our community.

To_ensure our schools are at the heart of the community they serve and are truly inclusive
organisations with equality for all across our community.

To engage positively with our families and wider community, building partnerships and programmes
that develop opportunities beyond the schoolsector.

Our Trust brings schools together into one organisation so that school leaders; teachers, learners and our
community can work and thrive together, gaining from and supporting each other. As a local Multi Academy
Trust operating from our school based office in North Telford, the Learning Community Trust (LCT) was
incorporated in June 2017 following approvals by the DfE, we are delighted to be an Academysponsor.

Our approachis built around a clearvision of inclusive education and a relentless drive for raising standards we
keep our focus on our learners, ensuring they are supported by great teachers, outstanding leaders and
excellentfacilities.

Webelieve in strong local management and governance, our Trust is led by our Members, our outstanding
Board of Trustees and each Academy has a Local Governing Board.

The Trust Executive Function is designed to be lean and focused, providing unwavering attention on getting the
best outcomesfor our learners, staff and community.

Wefocus on research and evidence led school improvements strategies, we develop our leaders and staff and
ensure wehaveexcellent and leading practice in our teaching, support and managementpractices.

Our support and managementfunctions are wholly focused on supporting our schools, with exemplary financial
management, excellent human resource support and a continuous drive for value for money, efficiency and
effectiveness.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Objectives andactivities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

Wehaveestablished four strategic objectives, with members and Trustees,for our Trust with linked KPIs:

1

N
O

o
e
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©

©
@
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#

o
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e
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. Our Learners are Engaged and Successful so that:-

Progress and achievement improve annually to at least national measures and beyond
Ourlearners are safe and enjoy school

Attendancerises well above national measures
Wehavelow exclusions from our schools
All our learners experience and enjoy a broad,rich and engaging curriculum
Learners with SENDhavetheir needs well met and make good progress
Learnerstell us they want to be at our Academies, our Academies are popular and often oversubscribed

. We have High Quality Staff across ourTrust so that: -

Teaching in our Academiesis consistently good or better and always improving

All staff have access to high quality professional development
Wecreate opportunities for staff across the Trust to develop their careers and share their practise

Werecruit and retain the highest calibre teaching and support staff
Wehavehighstaff attendance
Staff enjoy working in our schools and Trust

. We have a Culture of Continuous Improvementsothat: -

Wecontinuously review performance and areas for improvement
Any of our academies that require improvement are supported and challenged to improve to Goodwithin

two years.
Our Good schools are supported and challenged to have areas of outstanding practice
Wehavea Trust wide culture of collaboration focussed on school improvement

. Our Leadership and Governance is Exemplary sothat:-

OurTrustis viable, sustainable and highly effective
Wehaveoutstanding Leadership and governanceacrossthe Trust
Thereis efficient and effective financial management at Trust and academylevel
Growth of the Trust and its academiesis well led and managed
Trustpolicies and practises are firmly embeddedacross our Trust

Although it is necessary for us to have arrangements in place to run the Trust effectively, support and challenge
schools and engage with our communities, our core purposeis to do the bestfor our learners. Alongside great

teaching and pastoral care we have a commitmentto:

Raising the aspirations of all young people in our Trust to be the very best they can be.
Making our schools welcoming,inclusive and enjoyable for our students every day.
Providing world class opportunities for our learners that extendstheir learning and experiences
Giving, encouraging and acting uponthe voice of our learners, so they play a significantrole in our

Academiesand Trust.
Promoting student leadership in our Academies and across our Trust so they are part of our vision and

values.
Engaging learners in their own learning so they know how to succeed.
Developing confidence,resilience and determination in our young people, whatevertheir age.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Objectives and activities (continued)

. Ensuring a safe, supportive and caring environmentin our Academies so students are treated with
kindness, respect and live safely in our community.

WhyourTrustexists

Our Trust exists because we have a commitment and passion for providing great schools for our community.
We consider that a locally led and accountable Trust provides the best outcomes for learners and our
communities, this includes supporting schools facing challenges and ensuring the best schools become even
better.

Our aspirations are solely to support and improve our schools. Alongside those that becomepart of ourTrust,
we will consider associate arrangements for schools and other educational organisations that meet our aims
and would benefit from such an arrangement and support for other forms of provision where there are clear
benefits for all parties.

Across all our schools and community, we provide strategic direction; support; specialist expertise; shared
development and services focused on local needs. This is increasingly important at a time whenthetraditional

Local Authority role is diminishing, resources and funding are severely constrained and support services are
hard to access.

Weare convincedof the importance of and valuefor local schools to work closely together and have designed
our Trust to do justthat.

Wehave a sound modelin place and our schools gain significant benefit from opportunities to have all phases
of education Secondary, Primary and Special — working and learning together with the expertise that brings into
the Trust.

Our Trust also sponsors schools and has already demonstrated how effective leadership from the Trust has
helped improve schools through direct challenge and support and by working closely with fellow schools.

Weare proud of our successesin ourthird full year of operation despite the significant challenges that the
Covid 19 pandemic, the national lockdowns and subsequent school closures have had on our schools and
community overthe last two years.

The Trust during 2020-21 has continued to grow with the addition of two further schools — Crudgington Primary,
which joined us on the 1st January 2021 and Severndale Specialist Academy which transferred from a Single

Academy Trust on the 1st February 2021. LCT has now extendedits work across twolocal authorities — Telford
and Wrekin Council and Shropshire Council (as Severndale is located in Shrewsbury).

The scopeof our Trust

Our involvement ranges from early years through to secondary provision where wedeliver, influence and
support provision atall stages.

Wedirectly lead and support secondary schools, primary schools and SENDprovision (we lead, and support
SEND provision through two Special Schools and partnership arrangements for specific alternative PRU
provision). We have aninterest in post compulsory education and workclosely with local providers while also
considering the best provision for our leaners post 16.

We support schools that are high performing, and those moving from (Ofsted) categories, therefore schools
facing challenges and those looking for new arrangements to improve further are welcome to see what weoffer
and if we can help.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Objectives andactivities (continued)

We work closely with a wide range of stakeholders at strategic and operational levels, this includes
collaborative and formal partnership arrangements with key partners (e.g. RSC/DfE, other West Midlands
MATs,HE, Teaching School Hubs, Telford and Shropshire Councils and Telford College for post 16 provision).

Our Structure

Wehavein place a clear and accountable model for governanceatall levels that meets all the legal and best
practice expectations and demonstrates robust and transparent arrangements for leading our Trust and

schools. Our model:

. Ensures we havestrong capability and capacity within our Governancestructures and staff appointed to

the Trust
. Retains a clear modelof accountability and delegated governance, holding the CEO and key operational

officers to account so the Trust runsefficiently and effectively
. Maintains knowledge and expertise on system improvement and outcomesfor learnersof all ages and

settings e.g. Special, EYFS, primary, secondary and applying sound Quality Assurance practices
° Demonstrates a clear understanding of Trust Budgets and meeting responsibilities for budget controls

and accounting procedures acrossthe Trust with sound risk assessment proceduresin place
. Has a commitment to continuous and appropriate self review and training of our Members and Trustees

to ensure theyfulfil their key functions
. Ensures LGBsand schools within the Trust are fit for purpose with essential skill sets of Governors, meet

clear schemesof delegation and can focus on the core business of education
. Leads and developsthe Trust so it grows and becomessustainable, has due diligence processesthat

are effective and new schools joining the Trust are well supported and challenged
. Protects the integrity and future of the Trust including regular self review, succession and business

planning.

c. Public benefit

In setting objectives and planning foractivities, the Trustees have given due consideration to general guidance
published by the Charity Commission relating to public benefit, including the guidance ‘Public benefit: running a

charity (PB2)’.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST2021

 

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

Covid-19 pandemic

The Trust is proud of the arrangements putin place through 2020/21 to manage the complications of the
COVID-19 pandemic. From the behavioursof learners, commitmentof staff, leadership and governancein our
schools to our Executive and Trustees/Members, we have seen a single commitment to do the best for
everyone connected — and to go beyond whatcould have been expected.

This has been a second incredibly challenging year in education for our learners, our staff, our parents,
Trustees and Governors as well as across our community and oursociety. The onset of the pandemic in March
2020 and the fact we have hadto close our schools twice for long periodsof time has been an unprecedented
time in our professionallives.

The role of the Trust in supporting our schools through two years of significant challenges cannot be
underestimated. It is important to recognise what an incredible job our Principals/Headteachers, leadership
teamsandstaff did in making sure wedid the very bestfor our children, young people, andtheir families.

We spent the summer of 2020 preparing for the full reopening of our academies for the start of the new
academic year 2020/21 and ensuring that we fully met the DfE guidance on the procedures and systems we
needed to implement to keep our staff and children as safe in school from the spread of the virus and
controlling the risk of spreading infection.

Wewereall delighted that in September 2020 we were experiencing some degree of normality in that all our
children returnedto full-time face to face teaching and mostofourstaff could return to work and do the job they
were desperate to do. It must be said that with all the controls and bubbles we had to havein place it was not
normal, but it was as close as we could makeit and provide the full curriculum for our children.

The staff were fantastic, and we had a great start to Autumn 2020, everyonewasjust delighted to be backin
work and the children were brilliant. Attendance was high and our newly formed LCT Attendance and Welfare
Team of Education Welfare Officers, Mentors and Counsellors were outin schools and supporting children and
families who werereally struggling to overcome the challengesof returning to full-time education.

As the term proceeded, we beganto see a steep rise in Covid cases in the school population and we had to
close bubbles and sendchildren hometo control infection rates. We kept our Risk assessment and Operational
plans under constant review and there were weekly communications to staff and parents from the CEO to keep
everyone informed of the issues we were dealing with. Many children had periods where they returned to
Remote Learning and our schools did an incredible job maintaining high quality learning for them. We wereall
really concerned about our Y11 students and their GCSEs in summer 2021.

By Christmas 2020 the cases had continued to rise and closing bubbles was a regular weekly occurrencein all
our schools.

As weall know, just as we were preparing for the mass testing of our secondary students at the start of the
Spring Term 2021 the announcement was madeto close schools for a second time on the 3rd January 2021
and the majority of children did not return to school again until the 8th March 2021. GCSEs were cancelled for
a second year running and we had to quickly move to Home Learning for 100s of our children and young
people.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

   

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

This second period of schoolclosure was very different from the first and the key areas to note are: -

. We madethe decision to keep our Special schools — Queensway and Severndale (which wasaboutto

join LCT) fully open for all children becauseof the highly vulnerableprofile of the cohorts and the

immense pressure on parents to try and support HomeLearning.

. Our mainstream schools remained opento all vulnerable children (we have a RAGsystem in place to

identify these children), those with an EHC plan andchildren of key workers. The numbersof children in

school wassignificantly higher than in the previous closure and this was challenging as we neededthe

majority of staff to be supporting Home Learning.

° All our schools moved immediately to a full programme of Home Learning which was of high quality and

engaging. This wasprovided each day and was a combination of live Teams lessons, voiced

PowerPoints, and online resources. There wasa focus also on assemblies,tutor times and fun activities

to keep children engaged.

. Attendance at HomeLearning wasclosely monitored and wherechildren were not engagedcontact with

home was ongoingincluding homevisits.

. The Headteachers wereoften in daily and weekly communication with parents to support families as

were attendance, pastoral and SENDteams.

It was a huge team effort to keep children learning, engaged, and well supported during this closure and we are

proud of the work we did to provide the best provision possible. Parents were extremely appreciative, and we

had great feedback from them regarding the support and education we provided. It was very clear that parents

found this second school closure extremelydifficult.

Weimplementeda full return to school in March for all children andthis involved implementing a masstesting

programmefor secondary studentsto identify asymptomatic casespriorto a full return. This was another huge

challenge for our schools, and we had totrain staff and provide propertesting stations. As always everyone

respondedbrilliantly to this challenge, and we completed testing and got everyone backin within a few days.

By the time the summer term arrived we hadall children in school, westill operated bubbles and all our other

Covid safe procedures. Covid was part oflife and cases continued throughout the term and children werestill

being sent home who were close contacts, as were staff. Staff were beginning to be partly or fully vaccinated

which really helped with their anxiety around becoming seriously unwell or taking Covid hometo their own

families.

The secondary academies had to manage the submission of TAGs(teacher assessed grades) in April and May

ready for the June deadline and there was a significant programmeof assessmentto provide the evidence for

these grades. The staff worked hard to support Y11 to get the evidence needed and the students were equally

committed. ,

Alongside this all our schools focussed on catch up programmesandidentifying gaps in learning. There were

intervention programmesin place throughout the summer term delivered by our staff and tutors from the

National Tutoring Programme.

The three secondary schools and Queensway also implemented summer schools, and these were run

extremely successfully by our own staff with very high participation rates from our new Y7 children. It was the

first time they had set footin their new school. The feedback from parents was fabulous and we have seen the

significant benefits in Y7 from the start of the new academicyear.

To conclude, the year could not have been more complex and challenging but we are indebted to our amazing

staff who went above and beyondto do the very bestfor the children in their care.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance(continued)

a. Achievements and progress of LCT and our Academies

Despite the enormous challenges we have faced in the second year of the pandemic the Trust has just
celebratedits fourth full year of operation and is now well established in the community with an excellent local
and regional reputation.

We have spent this year embedding and refining our systems and processes so that the Trust is well led and
managedat all levels.

The Trust has grown,in line with our growth strategy and we welcomed Crudgington Primary into the Trust on
the 1st January 2021 as a convertor academy. Our growth has been manageable and timely meeting our vision
and strategy for establishing a local MAT for the community we serve.

In addition, we were approached by the RSC WestMidlandsin the summerterm of 2020 to provide leadership
and Governance support to Severndale Specialist Academya very large Special School of 400 young people in
Shrewsbury, a Single AcademyTrust, that had been identified by Ofsted with significant safeguarding failures.
This support was provided by the CEO and Chair of LCT Trust Board during the summer and autumn of 2020.
Weundertook detailed diligence processes at the request of the DfE to consider a possible transfer to LCT.
Trustees approved the transfer in December 2020 and Severndale transferred to LCT on the 1st February
2021. This was a complex project; we met some extremely challenging time scales, and we are delighted
Severndale has joined us. Since becoming part of LCT we have established a new LGB and appointed a new
Principal who took up post on the 1st September 2021.

Weare delighted with the progress of our academies have madein the last 12 months despite the immense
challenges they have had to deal with caused by the pandemic.

Our focus had been to support and challenge our schools, but the significant achievement has been building
collaboration and identifying strong practice across the Trust and disseminating this to drive school
improvement.

There has been significant investment in staff training and over 40 middle and senior leaders have been
involved in achieving National Professional Qualifications to support their development.

We haveincreased the capacity of the Trust to deliver school improvement and have clearly articulated
School Improvement Strategy. We have a senior leader from one of our academies working in this area with
the CEO and other leaders are involved in working across the Trust. We have a specialist Primary Advisor
working across our primaries to give consistency and to support dissemination of great: practise. There is a
Trust Review system in place involving each academy, twice a year, to identify strengths and key areas of
improvement.

All our academies have templates for Raising Achievement Plans and School Evaluation Forms, and these are
reviewed regularly by the CEO and the Local Governing Bodies to monitor progress towards individual
academypriorities.

The Trust works closely with Telford College and there is a formal Memorandum of Understanding between our
two organisations. this work is making exciting progress in terms of curriculum, post 16 destinations and other
identified areas. At the request of the DfE and the College LCTis providing school improvement for the Key
Stage 4 Pupil Referral Unit which the College currently sponsors.

 

Page 13



 

LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

The information belowis a brief overview of our eight academies. We are unable to report the 2021 outcomes
because primary testing was abandoned, and GCSE examinations cancelled because of school closures in

March 2021.

Our Y11 students were awarded Centre Assessed Grades (CAGs) by our schools. There are therefore no
national performance tables for 2021 primary and secondary results. Our internal data up until March was

indicating good improvements in SATS and GCSEperformance.

Five of our schools were in Ofsted “windows” during the academic year but inspections were postponed for a
second year running becauseof the impact of the pandemic on schools and then a second period of school
closure, we expect the inspections to take place in 2021/22.

Our schools:-

Hadley Learning Community, Primary Phase (reception — Y6, with a 60 place nursery) joined the Trust as a
convertor Academyon the 1st March 2018 andis currently graded “Good” by Ofsted. Our primary phaseis very
popular and oversubscribed. There is planned growth as we haveincreased the PAN to 90, from 60 in each
year group. This growth has one more year and then will have reached capacity. New classrooms and a new
dining hall have been added underbasic need funding.

Hadley Learning Community, Secondary Phase (11 - 16) joined the Trust as a convertor Academy on the
1st March 2018 and is currently graded “Good” by Ofsted. Our secondary phase is very popular and
significantly oversubscribed each year. The demandfor places has resulted in an increase in PAN from 180 to
240 from September 2019, there has beensignificant building adaptations in the summerto ensure this growth
can be accommodated. HLC Secondary remains a high performing school and 2019 GCSE placed HLC asthe
top performing comprehensivein Telford.

HLC operates as an all through school in a purpose built £70 million PFI campus which has significant
community use. HLC is led by an Executive Principal and a federated Governing Body, there is a Headteacher
of the Primary and Secondary Phase.

Ercall Wood Academy(11 - 16) joined the Trust as a convertor Academyon the 1st July 2018 and currently is
graded “Requires Improvement” by Ofsted prior to conversion. The Academy is housed in a superb new
building built under BSF, has a rapidly rising roll and is now at its PAN of 900 duetoits popularity locally. The
Trust implemented a significant intervention at leadership level in autumn 2019 and a new Principal joined the
academyin June 2020. The Academyis now improving rapidly, the Trust is confident that key improvements
are being made whichwill lead to improved outcomesoverthe next two years.

Queensway School(Y5 - Y11) joined the Trust as part convertor and part sponsored on the 1st March 2018 as
a mergerof two existing provisions.It is a special school which operates ontwosites with different specialisms,
under the leadership of one Headteacher. Queensway North has 60 students aged from Y6 -Y11 with a
significant diagnosis of autism and Queensway South has 60 students from Y5 — Y11 with a significant
diagnosis of social and emotional behaviour. All students have an EHC Plan and places are commissioned by
the local authority. The Trust appointed a new Headteacher from September 2020 following the retirement in

Augustof the previous Head.
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Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance(continued)

Charlton Secondary School (11 - 16) joined the Trust on 1st December 2018 as a sponsored academy
following a long and complex conversion linked to land issues. Charlton has been on significant school
improvement journey and outcomes in 2019 GCSEs werevery positive. We believe this improvement would
have continued 2020 and 2021. Chariton is a rapidly improving school and the Principal, senior leaders,staff,
and Governors have workedtirelessly to achieve this with the support of LCT.

Wrekin View Primary School (Reception — Y6 with a 60 place nursery) joined the Trust on the 1st December
2019 as a convertor academyfollowing a smooth conversion.It is a large primary schoollocated in Wellington
and the majority of Y6 transfer to one of our secondary academies. The school was graded “Good” by Ofsted in
November 2016. The Key Stage 2 outcomesare a focus to achieve at least national averages. The schoolis
popular with parents and the Head has beenin post for overfive years.

Crudgington Primary School (Reception to Y6) — joined the Trust on the 1st January 2021. This is a small
rural primary school with capacity for 150, currently it has 133 children on roll the majority are taught in mixed
classes. This is a convertor academy which was judged “Good” by Ofsted in March 2017. Weare delighted
Crudgington hasjoined LCT, and the three primary Heads and their staff are working well together. Crudgington
will grow over the next few years due to a major housing developmentclose by and there will be investmentin
the buildings andfacilities. The schoolis led by an experienced Headteacher.

Severndale Specialist Academy (3-25) — joined LCT on 1st February 2021 as a transfer from a SAT. There
are over 400 children onroll with a significant range of SEND including PMLD, SLD and MLD.All the children
have an EHC plan and places are commissioned by Shropshire Council. The academy operates over three
sites Monkmoor, Mary Webb and Futures. The academy was lasted inspected in December 2016 and was
judged “Good”. A new Principal has been in post since September 2021, we are already seeing rapid
improvements.

b. Key performanceindicators

The Trust is committed to supporting and challenging our academiesto build on their strengths and to address
areas for improvement. Webelieve in collaboration across our family of schools and identifying great practice
which can be shared and developed across the Trust but also to look beyond the Trust for innovation and
creativity in the sector.

We haveestablished clear key KPI’s for our academies. Supported by the Trust Executive Team, each
Academyleaderis responsible for the delivery of these KPls, held accountable locally by the Local Governing
Body (LGB). At their scheduled meetings, Trustees and Members consider overall performance andstrategic
progress of each academy ensuring the Trust provides high levels of challenge and support.

Below is a short summary of progress on our KPIs across our academies:

Progress and attainment to be at a minimum of national averages in key measures or rapidly improving
towards national — this is the case with the majority of our academies.

Attendance to be at least at national averages but aiming for 95% as a minimum — all our schools take
attendance very seriously and attendance is at or above national across our schools. We employ a Trust
Attendance and Welfare Team of Education Welfare Officers, mentors and counsellors who works in our
schools weekly to ensure the best possible attendance from our children but also to support mental health and
well-being. The impact of Covid has disrupted school attendance since March 2020 but we are absolutely
committed to ensuring children come to school every day.
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Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance(continued)

Lowlevels of fixed term exclusions, below the national average — all our schools have exclusionsfigures well
below national and we have worked hard to challenge schools wherethis wasnot the case.

Student numbers are high with no significant surplus places demonstrating that our schools are popular, the
first choice for parents in our community — all our schools are popular and manyare oversubscribed and we
have hadto increase capacity in two schools in agreement with the LA.

Staff attendanceis high andstaff turnoveris relatively low because staff enjoy working in our academies — we
are very fortunate to have outstanding attendance from ourstaff and we have good systemsin place to support
staff attendance. We had very low staff turnover and we have been able to increase staffing in schools where
there is significant growth.

Recruitment and retention ensures that we have a highly skilled workforce and that we do not have vacancies
or have teachers teaching outside their specialist areas — recruitment of high-quality teachers is paramount,
and all our academies recruited well for the new academic year despite the challenges of lockdown. We have

made some excellent appointment at Headteacher and senior leaders positions bringing new strengths and
experienceinto the Trust.

Ofsted inspections of our academies demonstrate our academies are at a minimum “Good” andidentify
significant areas of outstanding — none of our academies has had an Ofsted inspection since joining LCT but
many were due during the summerand autumnof 2020. Inspections were postponed becauseof the pandemic;
inspections have returned for September 2021. Our schools are well prepared for inspections, and we expect
these to take place during 2021-22.

The Trust operates its budget efficiently ensuring we achieve economies of scale and value for money across
all our schools. Our COO has reviewed manyofthe services linked to supply insurance, catering,utilities, and
estates ensuring we find savings and economies of scale where possible. The LCT Finance team is working
efficiently and effectively with our schools to monitor and control expenditure and to provide Heads and LGBs
with accurate monthly managementaccounts.

Each Academyis financially viable and managesits agreed budget within the Trust's schemeof delegation and
Financial Regulations we have challenged our schools and set balanced budgets for 2021-22.

c. Promoting the success of the company

Our schools and academies are central to the local community, and it is essential that the Trust promotes and
developsclose relationships with all members of the local.community by providing a warm welcometo pupils,
parents, local businesses, and membersof public that may usethefacilities.

The Trust places a very high priority on communication and makes every effort to ensure that all forms of
communication are clear, professional, and fair to all stakeholders. Partnerships have been developed and
maintained acrossall aspects of the community.

Ourstaff are key to the success of the Trust and as such we ensurethat all are treated fairly by having clear
policies and procedures in place. When making strategic decisions the interest of our employees are always
key to the decision-making process.
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Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

The Trust has grown steadily and in a controlled mannersince inception, carefully managed by Trustees and
Executive working closely with DFE/RSC andlocal authorities. We have a growth modelin place that will be
further reviewed in 2021/22 to enable more schools to join our Trust including the potential for capital funded
work to increase our stock. The Trust remains opento talking to any school wishing to consider joining our
family of Academies.

d. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

Financial review

a. Financial Review

During the financial year COVID 19 presented the Trust with additional income and expenditure that had not
been budgetedfor, these included additional PPE, cleaning schedules and products, catch up funding, physical
changesto buildings, signage, and hand sanitiser/cleaning stations. In addition to additional expenditure our
schools alsolost all third party income from March 2020 for lettings and catering profit share contracts. The
Trust fulfilled its obligations under PPNO2 in that catering partners continued to be paid an averageoftheir 3
monthprior free school meal turnover which was subject to detailed reconciliations. Staff that was employed on
zero hour contracts such as minibus drivers and exam invigilators were also paid prior average salaries
throughout lock downasfurlough did not apply.

The Academy has achieved an in-year normalised revenue surplus of £567,461 (2020: £317,482) (excluding
pension reserve and fixed asset movement). Total net movementin funds was a surplus of £2,247,813 (2020:
£4,713,360) which includes anactuarial loss on the pension schemeof £3,060,000 (2020: gain £1,783,000).

Total assets amounted to £99,009,536 (2020: £80,228,028) which is an increase from the prior year. Net
current assets has increased to £3,559,151 (2020: £807,555).

In the year, despite the impact of COVID 19, the principal sources of funding have continued to be received
and expenditure managed appropriately against this. A small amount of additional funding was received in
order to support the additional costs involved in reopening the schoolafter lockdown.

Total reserves at 31 August 2021 were £67,393,891 (2020: £65,146,078). The total reserves excluding the
restricted fixed asset fund and the pension reserves at 31 August 2020 was £2,892,087 (2020: £406,285).

Thefree reserves(unrestricted less designated) are £354,849 (2020: £347,156).
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b. Financial Objectives

The Trust has the followingfinancial objectives:

1. To safeguard the overall financial health of the Trust so that its strategic and business objectives can be
met.

2: To support maximum delegation to academies andfull accountability for managing their ownfinancial
affairs, whilst ensuring a clear andfair processis in place for allocating and managing resources across
the Trust.

3. To establish transparent arrangements for setting budgets, monitoring financial performance, and
managing balancesthat focus on the needsoflearners and maximising their outcomes.

4. To promote compliance with best practice, meeting ESFA requirements and the Articles and terms of the

Trust.

The Trust benchmarks academyfinances within the organisation and with similar academies and Trusts when

comparable data is available.

Financial Outturn 2020-21

The financial statements for the period ending 31 August 2021 include set up and conversion costs for
Severndale and Crudgington and income and expenditure relating to the full operation of the Trust, Hadley
Learning Community, Queensway, Ercall Wood, Charlton, Wrekin View and of Crudgington from 1 January
2021 and Severndale from 1 February 2021. In addition our academies experienced additional income and
expenditure for Covid 19 controls including enhanced cleaning, PPE, additional staffing for LFD testing of
pupils, summerschools, catch up tutoring and supporting families with food parcels. Some of the expenditure
has been recovered through the DfE grants howevernot all was possible at Severndale dueto large balances.
The Trust has supported academies joining the Trust through intervention from the CEO and detailed
operational support from the COO. Income from the School Condition Allocation funding was received for the
additional schools in the Trust and capital programmes through the summerdelivered building improvements
during August 2021 in line with completed building condition surveys.

The external funding environment for the Trust and the sector is extremely challenging andwill continue to be
so. This will be partly addressed as the numberof academies within the Trust expands and as pupil numbers
within existing academies increase where there is secured funding and clear demand for additional places. The
Trust continues to manage resources prudently and is actively working to reduce costs and improve value for

money,particularly in central and support services and through sharing expertise.

Reserves and BalancesPolicy

The effective managementof operating surpluses is key to the financial health and further development. The
Trust will ensure that related decisions are fair and fully transparent and will determine the availability of
surplus funds, the timing of release and percentage available to each academy including School Condition
Allocation funding. It is possible that major unforeseen events will have a material impact on the financial
health and operation of the Trust as a whole. Whilst the Trust aims to minimise such risks and will insure
against many of them,it will access and utilise reservesin the interests of the whole organisation and learners

where necessary to do so.
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Academieswill be encouraged to spend available resources for the benefit of learners in the year in which they
are received. However, academiesare also responsible for their ownfinancial risks, and so will need to budget
prudently and establish their own contingencies. Where a planned surplus has been accumulated, the academy
will produce a plan for the managed spend and investmentof that surplus in the interests of the academy and
the Trust as a whole.

The explicit aim is that no academy should be in deficit. In exceptional circumstances where an academy
cannotset a balanced budget,or the situation worsens midyear then the Trust may amendfinancial delegations
and will support the Local Governing Body to compile a clear financial recovery plan that will outline how the
academywill move backinto balance and howit will ‘repay’ accumulated deficits within two years.

c. Material investmentpolicy

The Trust does not hold any long term investments but has invested relatively small deposits in 30 and 90 day
investment accounts with Lloyd’s bank. The Trust has an investment policy in place which is reviewed and
monitored by the Business and Personnel Committee.

The remaining cash surpluses are held in instant access interest bearing accounts with the Trust's approved
bankers.

d. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to
Finance, Strategic, Operations and Compliance. A risk Managementpolicy is in place that clearly details how
risk should be categorised and the scored using a 3x3 matrix for the likelihood and impact which rates the risk
high medium or low. The audit and risk committee meet termly and scrutinise the risk register and
mitigation/movementlog whichis then reported back to the Board of Trustees.

Therisk register identifies the followingfinancialrisks:

. Inaccurate income and expenditure reporting resulting in poor decision making
* Loss throughfraud,error, theft, or disaster giving rise to waste of public funds
. Financial Regulations and Financial Procedures are not updated or are not adhered to / understood

resulting in breachesof regulations and legal compliance
. Non achievementof funding and other incometargets, for example, throughfailure to achieve planned.

Pupil retention could result with the funding allocation and successrate targets not met.
Failure to comply to Funding Agreementleadingto financial claw back
Funding cutsin future periods(financial viability) resulting in the school having financial difficulties
Insurancerisk risk of financial loss/inability to replace itemsis insufficient
Trust holding either insufficient or excessive reserves
Supplierfinancialviability and ability to deliver product in the required timescales
Financial systemsare not robust to ensurefinancial services are controlled.
Financialposition when schools expressaninterestin joining the Trust.
Risk that related party transactions are not transacted in accordance with the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook

4 COVID 19 related expensesfor the supply of equipment, PPE andstaffing andthird party income
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Fundraising

The Learning Community Trust supports academiesto raise funds for their chosen charities. Organised events
raise funds which is then collected through the school fund and bankedin the private school fund account. A
chequeis then raised and submitted to the charity collectedfor.

Plansfor future periods

The Trust has an agreed growth strategy with our Trust Board, and we have grown rapidly to eight schools
since our first schools joined in March 2018.

This is an exciting time for LCT, and we intend to grow steadily over the next few years ensuring we have
capacity to match our growth plans.

The Trustis in consultation and dialogue over other projects with the RSC and we expectto see further growth
in 2022.

Fundsheld as custodian on behalf of others

The Academyandits Trustees do notact as the custodian Trusteesof any othercharity.
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Streamlined energy and carbonreporting

Energy Background

A multi academy trust with 8 academy schools. Heating is predominantly via mains gas. The trust owns
several cars and mini-buses and has several members of staff who claim business mileage. For both the
minibus and businesstravel, the trust has recorded the numberof miles travelled during the year.

This methodology follows the GHG Reporting Protocol and uses the 2021 Government emission conversion
factors for greenhouse gas companyreporting.

Energy Source

Gas— total kWh(kilowatt-
hours) usedfor the year

Electricity — total kWh
used for the year

OwnedTransport

Various Cars & Minibuses
—4,192 miles in the year

Reimbursed Transport —
total mileage reimbursed
from staff claims = 2,373
miles

Total

Intensity ratio

Consumption Scope

5,389,785 kWh (gross CV Scope 1
(calorific value))

2,927,603 kWh Scope 2

4,192 miles * 1.55 (2021 Scope 1
SECRkWh pass &
delivery yehs. vans
average)
= 6,498 kWh

2,373 miles * 1.16071
(2021 SECR kWh pass &
delivery yehs, average car
conversionfactorto kWh,
petrol)
=2,754 kWh

Scope 3

8,326,639 kWh

Emissions data (tCO2e)
comparedwith an
appropriate business
activity (pupil numbers as
per Autumn census)

Emissions calculation

5,389,785 kWh * 0.18316 (2021
fuels, natural gas conversion
factor gross CV to kg CO2e)
= 987,193 kgCO2e
= 987.193 tCO2e

2,927,603 kWh * 0.21233 (2021
UKelectricity conversion factor to
kgCO2e) = 621,618 kgCO2e
= 621.618 tCO2e

4,192 miles = 6,746 km

6.746 km * 0.24116 (2021
managed assets vehicles, vans
average — usedinlieu of
passenger vehicles conversion) =
1,627 kgCO2e
= 1.63 tCO2e

2,373 miles * 0.28053 (2021
business travel and average car
conversion factor to kqCQ2e,
petrol) = 666 kgCO2e
=0.67 tCO2e

1,611.10 tCO2e

1,611.10 tCO2e/4, 191 pupils.

= 0.384 tCO2e per punil
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UK Greenhouse qas emissions and Current reporting Comparison reporting year
energy usedata for the period 1 year 2020/21 2019/20(figures are for
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 illustrative purposes)

Energy consumption used to calculate 8,326,639 8,790,874
emissions (kWh)

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption 987.193 878.299
Ownedtransport 1.63 4.33
Total Scope 1 988.82 862.63

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchasedelectricity 621.618 930.848

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee-owned 0.67 1.01
vehicles

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes 1,611.10 1,814.49
CO2e

Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2eper pupil 0.384 0.440

Quantification and reporting methodology

Wehave followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommendedratio for the sector.
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Measurestaken to improve energyefficiency

| Chariton School LEDlighting installed in sports hall. Initiated program to replace all

lighting in school with LEO.

Crudgington Primary School LED lighting has been put in through School

ERCALL WOOD ACADEMY None

Hadley Learning Community None

QUEENSWAY HLC SOUTH None

Queensway North Campus None

Severndale Specialist Academy A large project was undertaken in 2019 to replacelights with LED. PV

solar panels were also installed in 2019. All fight fittings are now replaced

with LED

Wrekin View Primary School Corridorlighting replaced with LED

Academy

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

e there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and

° that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are awareofthat information.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by orderof the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 6 th Décemseg 2o2)\ and signed on its behalf
by:

 

MrMichael Briscoe
Chair of Trustees
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Scopeof responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we haveoverall responsibility for ensuring that Learning Community Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatementorloss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Learning Community Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdownsin internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the

statement of trustees’ responsibilities and in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilies. The board of Trustees
has formally met 5 times during the preiod in addition to topic-based meetings and discussions.

Attendance during the period at meetings of the board of Trustees wasasfollows:

Trustee Meetings attended Outof a possible

Mrs Stephanie Bridgwater 2 2
MrMichael Briscoe, Chair and Member 5 5
Mrs Christine Davies 5 5
Dr Gill Eatough, Chief Executive and 5 5
Accounting Officer
Mr Andrew Harris 5 5
Mr Graham Hutchinson 5 5
Mr David James, Member 5 5
Mrs Lisa Jinks 0 0
MrClive Jones 0 0
Mrs Beverly Tyley 5 5
Mr Nathan Wallis 3 5
Dr David Woods 5 5

Mr David Wootton § 5

In addition to the formal meetings, each Trustee has engaged directly with the Executive to provide extended
support and guidance alongside governanceincluding Committee attendance.

Our annual review of governance took place in the Autumn Term 2020, to ensure the full, effectiveness and
impact of governance. This time the review had a focus on knowledge,skill and understanding of Trustees.
The NGAframework wasusedasthe basis for the self-review by each Trustee with some modifications to meet
our context. The confidential responsesarising from the review were then independently analysed by Mr David
Wootton and was considered by Members and the full Board of Trustees in December 2020. Additional
briefing, input and options for personal developmentfollowed as requested byindividual Trustees.
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Governance (continued)

This review of Governance was undertaken during the astonishingly complex situation and challenges arising
from the COVID-19 pandemic and during the latter part of 2019/20 and into 2020/21, the Board of Trustees
implemented temporary enhanced governance arrangements to protect the Trust, ensure continuity of
governance andagile decision making during the COVID-19 pandemic, these arrangements continued through
2020/21 These arrangements complied with and extended beyond the best practice advice and guidelines
issued by DfE.

As a result, of the findings of the 2019/20 the 2020/21 self-review stages, and the experiences from governing
effectively during the pandemic, a review of the capacity of the Board of Trustees was undertaken. As a result,
and to prepare for future growth, the Trust Board has been extended to 12 Trustees with new appointmentsfully
in place.

The Board of Trustees also commissioned a review of the Terms of Reference for the Committees of the
Board. Trustees determined the need to extend the spread of work demand and risk across the Board and
enhance focus on key areas of the Trust. Trustees APPROVEDthe establishment of a Standards Committee
andfor termsof reference to be prepared and submitted for implementation in 2021/22.

The Trust considers that good governance expends beyond operational discussions and includes the need to
look strategically and beyond current timelines and plans. In June 2021, the Board undertook a whole Trust
strategic review that considered growth, capacity, and reach, taking into account the context of the national
changes and announcementsaffecting the sector.

Weconsider self, peer and external review is essential to our Trust and conduct such reviews using external
advice and guidance and alongside best practice and local knowledgeof our specific context. We use external
models (NGA, CST, Audit reviews) as the basis for our reviews and, subject to the outcomeof the changesin
the National Leaders of Governance model (managed by NGAfor DfE), the Chair intends to invite an external
NLG review of governanceforour Trust in 2021/22.

Governance formed a significant part of the Internal Scrutiny that was conducted by independent auditors
during 2020/21 and confirmed that the Governance Structure complied with six key features:

Strategic leadership that sets and championsvision, ethos andstrategy.
Accountability that drives up educational standards and financial performance.
People with the right skills, experience, qualities and capacity.
Structures that reinforce clearly defined roles and responsibilities.
Compliance with statutory and contractual requirements.
Evaluation to monitor and improve the quality and impact of governance.

Although the board has met fewer than six times in the year the trust has maintained effective oversight of
funds through the Business and Personnel Committee which met 8 times throughout the year. The Standing
Agenda item for Finance waschaired by the Non-Executive Directive of Finance.

The Business and Personnel Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. The powers and
functions delegated by the Board to the Business & Personnel Committee are Funding, Budgeting, Financial
Management and Expenditure, Review of monthly management accounts, financial procedures, Health &
Safety, Asset Management and Property Management. The Business and Personnel Committee also have the
powers and functions delegated by the Board in respect of Pay, Personnel and Performance/Appraisal
Managementacrossthe Trust.

Bev Tyley, (Non-Executive Director of Finance)is a qualified accountant, and memberof the committee.
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Governance(continued)

Attendance during the period at meetings wasasfollows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr Michael Briscoe, Chair and Member ¢ 8
Mr David James, Member 8 8
Dr Gill Eatough, Chief Executive and 8 8
Accounting Officer
Mrs Beverly Tyley 8 8

The Audit & Risk Committee is also a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. The powers and
functions delegated by the Board to the Audit & Risk Committee are: External Audit, Internal Audit, Financial

Management& Policies, Risk Register and managementofrisk.

Attendance during the period at meetings wasasfollows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out ofa possible

Mr Andrew Harris
Mr Nathan Wallis
Mr Graham Hutchinson
Mrs Beverly Tyley N

W
O
R
W

A
R
A
A
A
L

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achievedin return for the taxpayer resourcesreceived.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered

improved value for money during the period by:

. Raising student attainment
The Trust regularly reviewsits staffing structure in order to deploystaff efficiently to support an improved
curriculum and target areas of the curriculum in need of development. The Trust uses the model,
recommendedby the DfE,of ICFP (Integrated Financial and Curriculum Planning) to modelthe cost of
the curriculum in termsof staffing costs, deployment, class size etc. The administration and support staff
is also reviewed to ensure appropriate staffing levels to support our academies.

Pupil progress is assessed andtracked rigorously throughout their education with appropriate andtimely
interventions to raise attainment. Free school meals children are supported throughinterventions funded
from the Pupil Premium Grant aimed at narrowing the attainment gap.

The Trust collaborates with other educational providers and experts to share delivery or good practice
including the Severn Teaching Alliance, the Salop Teaching Alliance, the Alliance for Learning, Telford

College and other local Trusts.
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Reviewof value for money (continued)

. Financial governance and oversight
The Trust's system ofinternal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. In particular this includes:
° Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget andperiodic

financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees;
° Regular reviews by the Business and Personnel committee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes;

° Setting targets to measurefinancial and other performance;
° Clearly defined purchasing guidelines;
° Delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and
° Identification and managementofrisks.

: Better purchasing/procurement
Trust contracts have been enteredinto to ensure reduced cost whereit wasfelt that this would benefit
the Trust. Some external services have been terminated as the expertise is now available within the
Trust. Contractual costs are benchmarked across the schools in the Trust to compare best value.
Economiesof scale are achieved by the sharing of human and material resources across the Trust.

* Better income generation
The Trust explores every opportunity to generate incomethroughthe hire of our Academies’facilities
and through the provision of consultancy and services to other educational providers. Bids for external
grants are applied for where relevant.

. Reviewing controls and managing risks
Monthly budget monitoring reports are produced and reviewed by the Chief Operating Officer and any
necessary remedial action taken to addresssignificant variances that may have an impact on the budget
out turn discussed with the Accounting Officer and the Business and Personnel Committee.

The purpose of the system ofinternal control

The system of internal control is designed to managerisk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminateall risk
offailure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assuranceof effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designedto identify
andprioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Learning Community Trustfor the period
1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. . .

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trusteesis
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's
significant risks that has beenin place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and upto the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
Trustees.
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Therisk and control! framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget andperiodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed bythe board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Business and Personnel Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchaseplans, capital works and expenditure
programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase orcapital investment) guidelines
identification and managementofrisks
Health and Safety Audits across all schools from Telford and Wrekin Council, including compliance
of planned maintenance
Independent H&S Audits
GDPRaudits across all schools from the Local Authority Data Protection Officer
Fire Risk Assessments
Safeguarding audits from the Local Authority

The Board of Trustees has considered the needfor a specific internal audit function and has opted for a bought
in internal audit service.

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Telford and Wrekin Council as internal auditor.

The Board considered the output from external audit interim visits, and other compliancevisits, in conjunction
with the Trust's assessmentof risk in confirming the scope of the internal audit work.

Theinternal auditor's role included performing a range of checks on areas of the Trust’s finance systems and
controls which included:

- Governancestructures
- Efficiency, Funding and Budgets
- Managementinformation and reports
- Safeguarding and Whistleblowing.
- Fraud, theft and bribery

The overall opinion of assurance levels from the auditors was ‘Reasonable’ identifying that there is a sound
system of control but there is evidence of some minor non-compliance with someof the controls which haveall
been immediately actioned and implemented.

In addition to the internal audit, the external auditors reported to the Board the results of the interim visits
performed during the year, which comprise part of the statutory year end audit, reporting on the operation of the
systemsof control and on the discharge of the Trustees’financial responsibilities.
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Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system ofinternal control. During the period in question the review has been informed by:

e the workofthe internal auditors;

e the work of the external auditors;

. on discharge of the Board of Trustees financial decisions to help the committee consider actions and
assess year on year progress

° the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenanceofthe internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvementof the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 6 Déecemszca 221 and signed
on their behalf by:

wb bo C0ebos\—
MrMichael Briscoe Dr Gill Eatough
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

 

As Accounting Officer of Learning Community Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust
board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions ofall funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreementin
place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the Trust board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper useofall
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's
funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the
board of Trustees and ESFA.

Dr Gill Eatough
Accounting Officer
Date: cg /72[2
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STATEMENTOF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Companylaw requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law, the Trustees must not approvethe financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and ofits incoming resources and application of
resources,including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e observe the methods andprinciples of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2020 to 2021;
° make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explainedin the financial statements;

° preparethe financial statements on the going concernbasis unlessit is inappropriate to presumethat the

charitable companywill continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensurethat the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. Theyare also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hencefor taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. Theyare also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposesintended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
disseminationof financial statements maydiffer from legislation in otherjurisdictions.

Approvedby order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed onits behalf by:

WHA

Mr Michael Briscoe
Chair of Trustees
Date:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERSOF
LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

 

Opinion

Wehave audited the financial statements of Learning Community Trust(the'trust') for the year ended 31
August 2021 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash
flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In ouropinion the financial statements:

° give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 andofits incoming

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and

° have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities

SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills

Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independentof the Trust in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we havefulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Webelieve that the audit evidence we haveobtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusionsrelating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from whenthe financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Ourresponsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections ofthis report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST (CONTINUED)

 

Otherinformation

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatementin the financial statements themselves.If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatementof this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Wehavenothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertakenin the course of the audit:

° the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are preparedis consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.

Matters on which weare required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we havenotidentified material misstatements in the Trustees’ report including the Strategic report.

Wehave nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires usto report to youif, in our opinion:

° adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branchesnotvisited by us; or

° the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

° we have notreceivedall the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of trustees

As explained morefully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Trust for the purposes of companylaw) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true andfair view, and for suchinternal control as the Trustees determineis
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthefinancial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:
* We reviewed the susceptibility of the Trust's financial statements to material misstatement and identified the
principal risks, implementing a series of testing procedures to provide us with sufficient comfort to issue our
opinion.
* Wereviewed the Trust's regulatory environment to ensure we could conclude thatit had acted in accordance
with the frameworkrelevantto the Trust and its environmentandidentify any instances of non-compliance.
+ We also assessed the Trust's internal control procedures to ensure we could appropriately scrutinise these
controls and establish whether our understanding of the control environment was sufficient to supplement our
additional testing procedures.
* The engagement team consisted of a team that the engagementpartner believes is equipped with the
relevant level of technical and Trust awarenessto carry out our work to the required standard.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditors’ report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charitable Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Andrew MalpassBAFCA(senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
WRPartners
Belmont House
Shrewsbury Business Park
Shrewsbury
SY2 6LG

Date:

 

Page 35



 

LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO LEARNING
COMMUNITY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

 

In accordance with the terms of our engagementletter dated 19 August 2021 andfurther to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagementto obtainlimited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and incomereceived by Learning Community Trust during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have
been applied to the purposesidentified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Learning Community Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagementletter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Learning Community Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Learning Community Trust
and ESFA,for our work,for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Learning Community Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Learning Community Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 March 2018 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and incomereceived is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagementletter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to ourattention in carrying out our work which suggeststhat in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliamentor that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. Weperformeda limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagementletter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagementis to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become awareofall significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagementincludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Trust's income and expenditure.
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COMMUNITY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

 

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and incomereceived during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Andrew Malpass BA FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
WRPartners

Belmont House
Shrewsbury Business Park
Shrewsbury
SY2 6LG

Date:
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STATEMENTOF FINANCIALACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Note

Incomefrom:

Donations and capital
grants 3

Othertrading activities

Investments 6

Charitable activities

Total income

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net
income/(expenditure)

Transfers between
funds 18

Net movementin
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuarial (losses)/gains
on defined benefit
pension schemes 25

Net movementin
funds

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Total funds carried
forward

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020

£ £ £ £ £

- (9,171,136) 16,716,532 7,545,396 4,339,497

7,162 588,219 - 595,381 687,802

531 - - 531 2,261

- 33,949,133 - 33,949,133 26,389,535

7,693 25,366,216 16,716,532 42,090,441 31,419,095

- 35,420,040 1,362,588 36,782,628 28,488,735

- 35,420,040 1,362,588 36,782,628 28,488,735

7,693 (10,053,824) 15,353,944 5,307,813 2,930,360

- (51,067) 51,067 - -

7,693 (10,104,891) 15,405,011 5,307,813 2,930,360

- (3,060,000) - (3,060,000) 1,783,000

7,693 (13,164,891) 15,405,011 2,247,813 4,713,360

347,156 (12,671,871) 77,470,793 65,146,078 60,432,718

354,849 (25,836,762) 65, 146,07892,875,804 67,393,891
 

The Statementoffinancial activities includes all gains and losses recognisedin the year.

The notes on pages 42 to 73 form part of thesefinancial statements.
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Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors

Cashat bank and in hand

Creditors: amountsfalling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less currentliabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pensionliability

Defined benefit pension schemeliability 25

Total net assets

2021
Note £

14 92,232,905

92,232,905

15 1,026,165

5,750,466

6,776,631

16 (3,217,480)

3,559,151

95,792,056

17 (24,165)

95,767,891

(28,374,000)

67,393,891

827,683

2,234,569

3,062,252

(2,254,697)

2020

77,165,776

77,165,776

807,555

77,973,331

(96,253)

77,877,078

(12,731,000)

65,146,078
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST2021

 

Fundsofthe Trust

Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds

Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

18

18

18

18

18

18

92,875,804

2,537,238

95,413,042

(28,374,000)

2021 2020
£ £

77,470,793

59,129

77,529,922

(12,731,000)

67,039,042 64,798,922

354,849 347,156

67,393,891 65, 146,078

The financial statements on pages 38 to 73 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on

and are signedontheir behalf, by:

MrMichael Briscoe
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 42 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST 2021

 

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 20

Cash flowsfrom investing activities 21

Changein cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash andcash equivalents at the end of the year 22, 23

The notes on pages 42 to 73 form part of these financial statements

2021

3,679,490

(163,593)

3,515,897

2,234,569

5,750,466

2020

1,339,461

(67,098)

1,272,363

962,206

2,234,569
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sourcesof estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared underthe historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of RecommendedPractice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA,the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going conceris appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessmentin respect of a period
of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

After making enquires, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Trust therefore
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. The Trustees have
also assessed the potential impact on the future operations of the Trust with regard to the Covid-19
outbreak. The Trust is considered to be well positioned given the current environment with no
impact on the going concernbasis ofthe financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measuredreliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
incomereceived for specific purposes but not expended during the period. is shownin the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where incomeis received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income andits recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Whereentitlement occurs before incomeis received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognisedasa liability.

Capital grants are recognisedin full whenthere is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.
Capital grants are recognised whenthere is entitlement and are not deferred overthe life of the
asset on which they are expended.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

1.4

1.5

Income(continued)

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measuredreliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amountcan bereliably measured.

Other income

Other income,including the hire offacilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the Trust has provided the goodsorservices.

Transfer on conversion

Whereassets andliabilities are received by the Trust on conversion to an academy,the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks
and rewards of ownership pass to the Trust. An equal amountof incomeis recognised as a transfer
on conversion within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' to the net assets received.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amountofthe obligation can be measuredreliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than oneactivity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governanceof the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive ofirrecoverable VAT.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.
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4. Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Taxation

The Trust is considered to passthe tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and thereforeit meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, netof
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economiclife. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiring the continued useof the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
statementof financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis overits
expected usefullife, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - 125 years, straightline
Long-term leasehold property - 125 years, straightline
Furniture and equipment - 5 years, straight line
Computer equipment - 3 years, straightline
Motorvehicles - 5 years, straightline

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statementof financialactivities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amountprepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cashat bankandin hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised whenthere is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amountof the settlement can be estimatedreliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amountit has received as advanced payments
for the goodsorservicesit must provide.

1.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised whenthe Trust has anobligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event whichit is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be
estimatedreliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation.
Wherethe effect of the time value of moneyis material, the provision is based on the present value
of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable andsimilar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. Thefinancial assets and
financialliabilities of the Trust and their measurement basesare asfollows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15.

Cashat bankis classified as a basic financial instrument and is measuredat face value.

Financialliabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and thereis an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or anotherfinancial instrument.

1.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statementoffinancialactivities on a straight
line basis over the lease term. ‘
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Accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposesandthe contributions recognised in the period to whichtheyrelate.

The LGPSis a funded multi-employer scheme andthe assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to theliabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined

benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the schemeassets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the schemeassets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the schemeassets
and the actualreturn on the schemeassets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for
particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fundis set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposedby the funders wherethe asset acquired or createdis held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by
the funder/donorandinclude grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and lossesare allocated to the appropriate fund.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets andliabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefitliability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changesin these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amountof the
pensionliability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latestfull actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensionsliability at
31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach anda full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amountof the pensionliability.

Crudgington Primary land and buildings have been introduced at a value equal to the net book value
held by the Local Authority at the time of conversion to Academystatus.

Severndale School transferred into the Trust during the year. The transfer balances have been
introduced at a value equal to the net assets reportedin their closing accounts.
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Incomefrom donations and capital grants

 

 

 

 

 

 

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020

£ £ £ £
Conversion and existing academytransfer
balances

Assets received on conversion - 1,125,000 1,125,000 4,651,000

DFC balance on conversion - 4,635 4,635 -

Schoolfund balance on conversion - - - 14,944

Surplus/(Deficit) balance on conversion 83,126 - 83,126 (54,374)

Pension on conversion (294,000) - (294,000) (737,000)

Assets received ontransfer - 14,676,406 14,676,406 -

Surplus/(Deficit) balance on transfer 1,709,541 - 1,709,541 -

Pension ontransfer (10,866,000) - (10,866,000) -

Futures balance ontransfer 162,586 - 162,586 -

Schoolfund balance ontransfer 14,155 - 14,155 =

Subtotal (9,190,592) 15,806,041 6,615,449 3,874,570

Donations 19,456 - 19,456 2,303

Capital Grants - 910,491 910,491 462,624

Subtotal 19,456 910,491 929,947 464,927

Total 2021 (9,171,136) 16,716,532 7,545,396 4,339,497

Total 2020 (774,127) 5,113,624 4,339,497
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Funding for the Trust's educationalactivities

Restricted
funds
2021

£
DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG) 25,852,963

Other DfE/ESFAgrants:

Start Up Grants 25,000

Other DfE/ESFA Grant Income 70,124

Rates reclaim 114,311

PE and Sports Grant 70,658

Pupil Premium 1,267,105

Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM) 157,015

27,557,176

Other Governmentgrants

Local Authority - SEN 3,966,576

Local Authority - Early Years 281,441

Government- Other Grants 1,196,624

5,444,641
Other Income 326,326

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)

Catch-up Premium 432,960

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding 188,030

620,990

Total 2021 33,949,133

Total 2020 26,389,535

Total
funds
2021

£

25,852,963

25,000

70,124

114,311

70,658

1,267,105

157,015

27,557,176

3,966,576

281,441

1,196,624

5,444,641
326,326

432,960

188,030

620,990

33,949,133

26,389,535

Total
funds
2020

£

21,091,490

25,000

56,672

157,143

45,564

1,081,739

112,072

22,569,680

2,007,871

213,988

1,389,334

3,611,193
178,304

30,358

30,358

26,389,535
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Incomefrom othertradingactivities

 

 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

Lettings 7,162 - 7,162 31,597

Supply teacher insurance - 237,603 237,603 89,758

School fund income - 185,054 185,054 405,065

Incomefrom ancillary trading activities - 165,562 165,562 161,382

Total 2021 7,162 588,219 595,381 687,802

Total 2020 31,597 656,205 687,802

Investment income

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2020

£ £ £

Short term deposit income 531 531 2,261

Total 2021 531 531 2,261

Total 2020 2,261 2,261
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Expenditure

Educationalactivities:

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Total 2021

Total 2020

 

 

 

 

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educationalactivities

Total 2021

Total 2020

 

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020

£ £ £ £ £

23,271,927 - 1,603,890 24,875,817 19,130,509

3,837,886 2,042,305 6,026,620 11,906,811 9,358,226

27,109,813 2,042,305 7,630,510 36,782,628 28,488,735

20,199,040 1,324,694 6,965,001 28,488,735

Activities
undertaken Support Total Total

directly costs funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

24,875,817 11,906,811 36,782,628 28,488,735

24,875,817 11,906,811 36,782,628 28488735
 

19,130,509 9,358,226 28,488,735
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Educational Total Total
activities funds funds

2021 2021 2020
£ £ £

Staff costs 23,271,927 23,271,927 17,700,275

Educational Supplies 1,079,013 1,079,013 786,125

Examination Fees 219,815 219,815 236,330

Technology Costs 34,743 34,743 6,115

Educational Consultancy - - 3,658

Other costs 168,869 168,869 150,282

Legal and Professional 101,450 101,450 247,724

Total 2021 24,875,817 24,875,817 19,130,509

Total 2020 19,130,509 19,130,509
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Educational
activities

2021
£

Staff costs 3,837,886

Depreciation 898,959

Technology Costs -

Educational Consultancy 114

OtherStaff Costs 829,854

PFI costs 2,882,189

Other costs 566,525

Rates 149,805

Energy 335,841

Maintenance of Premises 719,875

Cleaning and Caretaking 359,317

Operating Leases 65,104

Security 15,206

Transport 46,509

Catering 510,954

Other Premises Costs 400,878

Legal and Professional 265,945

Audit and accountancy 21,850

Total 2021 11,906,811

Total 2020 9,358,226

Total
funds
2021

E

3,837,886

898,959

114

829,854

2,882,189

566,525

149,805

335,841

719,875

359,317

65,104

15,206

46,509

510,954

400,878

265,945

21,850

11,906,811

9,358,226

Total
funds
2020

£

2,498,765

670,177

1,289

9,691

570,430

2,808,269

758,086

209,071

265,802

270,710

326,138

26,773

9,284

36,593

472,812

251,276

154,835

18,225

9,358,226
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10.

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation oftangible fixed assets

Feespaid to auditors for:

- audit

- other services

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were asfollows:

Wagesandsalaries

Social security costs

Pension costs

Agencystaff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments

Severance payments

Other restructuring costs

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

2021
£

65,104

898,402

16,200

5,650

2021
£

19,241,117

1,793,098

5,330,725

26,364,940

727,818

17,055

27,109,813

2021

15,055

2,000

17,055

2020
£

26,773

670,179

12,450

5,400

2020
£

14,643,112

1,384,949

3,872,147

19,900,208

238,736

60,096

20,199,040

2020

37,560

22,536

60,096

During the period the Trust made a severance paymentof £2,000 to one employee (2020: £37,560).
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10. Staff (continued)

c. Staff numbers

The average numberof persons employed by the Trust during the year wasasfollows:

2021 2020
No. No.

Teachers 324 265

Administration and Support 433 277

Management 10 9

767 551

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:

2021 2020
No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 16 8

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 4 3

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 3 2

In the band £90,001 - £100,000 1 3

In the band £100,001 - £110,000 1 -

In the band £110,001 - £120,000 1 -

In the band £120,001 - £130,000 - 1

In the band £130,000 - £140,000 1 -

e. Key managementpersonnel

The key managementpersonnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key managementpersonnelfor their services to
the Trust was £1,286,434 (2020 £986,729).
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11. Central services

The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Finance

Facilities Manager

Education Welfare Officer & Counselling

GDPR
HR & Payroll

The Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

A topslice flat percentage of incomeis applied of:

- HLC Primary and Secondary 4% with a 2% rebate for Trust Accomodation
- Ercall Wood 4%
- Queensway 4%
- Charlton 4%
- Wrekin View 4%
- Crudgington 4%
- Severndale 4%

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
£ £

HLC Secondary and Primary 195,820 174,751

Queensway 105,495 102,250

Ercall Wood 188,581 186,843

Charlton 229,882 215,841

Wrekin View 66,415 46,207

Crudgington (converted 1/1/21) 15,923 -

Severndale (converted 1/2/21) 167,445 =

Total 969,561 725,892
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12.

13.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertakingthe roles of principal and staff members undertheir contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2021 2020
£ £

Dr Gill Eatough, Chief Executive and Remuneration 130,000 - 120,000 -
Accounting Officer 135,000 125,000

Pension contributions paid 30,000 - 30,000 -
35,000 35,000

During the year ended 31 August 2021, expensestotalling £161 were reimbursed 1 Trustee (2020:ENil)
for mileage.

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000.It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

 

Page 57



 

LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

14,

15.

Tangible fixed assets

Costor valuation

At 1 September 2020

Additions

Disposals

At 31 August 2021

Depreciation

At 1 September 2020

Charge for the year

On disposals

At 31 August 2021

Net bookvalue

At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepayments and accrued income

Long-term Furniture
Freehold leasehold and Computer Motor
property property equipment equipment vehicles Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

34,888,000 43,498,500 63,975 109,297 15,500 78,575,272

- 15,334,120 177,047 429,673 25,248 15,966,088

- - - (3,911) - (3,911)

34,888,000 58,832,620 241,022 535,059 40,748 94,537,449

448,269 897,876 21,589 37,112 4,650 1,409,496

279,104 433,083 51,900 127,273 7,042 898,402

i a - (3,354) a (3,354)

727,373 1,330,959 73,489 161,031 11,692 2,304,544

34,160,627 57,501,661 167,533 374,028 29,056 92,232,905

34,439,731 42,600,624 42,386 72,185 10,850 77,165,776

2021 2020
£ £

216,034 22,518

304,481 287,843

505,650 517,322

827,6831,026,165
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16.

17.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Othertaxation and social security

Othercreditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2020

Resources deferred during the year

Amounts released from previous periods

2021
£

1,386,363

475,634

554,117

801,366

3,217,480

2021
£

109,181
502,342
(109,181)

502,342

2020
£

1,128,049

348,765

406,148

371,735

2,254,697

2020
£

252,299
109,181
(252,299)

109,181

Included in deferred income are monies received in the year from the Local Authority and the ESFA that
are for the 2021/2022 year.

Creditors: Amountsfalling due after more than one year

Othercreditors

2021
£

24,165

2020
£

96,253
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18. Statement of funds

 

 

 

 

 

 

Balanceat 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August

2020 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds -
all funds 347,156 7,693 - - - 354,849

Restricted
general funds

GAG - 25,852,963 (25,852,963) - - .

Pupil Premium - 1,267,105 (1,267,105) - - -

School Fund 192,666 199,209 (187,495) - - 204,380

Other Grants (133,537) 9,181,939 (6,664,477) (51,067) - 2,332,858

Start Up Grants - 25,000 (25,000) - - -

Pension reserve (12,731,000) (11,160,000) (1,423,000) - (3,060,000) (28,374,000)

(12,671,871) 25,366,216 (35,420,040) (51,067) (3,060,000) (25,836,762)

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Class Il
Restricted Funds
- all funds 77,165,776 15,801,406 (898,959) 164,682 - 92,232,905

DFC Capital
Income 53,473 153,167 (17,420) (44,958) - 144,262

School
Condition
Allocation 251,544 761,959 (446,209) (68,657) - 498,637

77,470,793 16,716,532 (1,362,588) 51,067 - 92,875,804

Total
Restricted
funds 64,798,922 42,082,748 (36,782,628) - (3,060,000) 67,039,042

Total funds 42,090,441 (36,782,628) - (3,060,000) 67,393,89165,146,078
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18. Statementof funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds

The balanceis being utilised to support the deficit on restricted funds.

Restricted funds
This includes the main ESFA andlocal authority funding and general expenditure of the Trust.

Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. Restricted general funds
comprise ofall other restricted funds received and include grants from the Department of Education.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amountof GAGit could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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18. Statementof funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding yearis as follows:

 

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August

2019 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds 313,298 33,858 - - - 347,156

Restricted
general funds

GAG - 21,091,490 (21,091,490) - - :

Pupil Premium - 1,081,739 (1,081,739) - - -

School Fund 239,732 405,065 (452,131) - - 192,666

Other Grants (358,908) 4,405,319 (4,114,059) (65,889) - (133,537)

Start Up Grants - 25,000 (25,000) - - -

Pension reserve (12,877,000) (737,000) (900,000) - 1,783,000 (12,731,000)

 

(12,996,176) 26,271,613 (27,664,419) (65,889) 1,783,000 (12,671,871)

 

 

 

 

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Class Il
Restricted Funds 73,115,596 4,651,000 (670,177) 69,357 - 77,165,776

DFC Capital

Income - 87,623 (34,360) 210 - 53,473

Other Capital
Grants - 3,678 - (3,678) - -

School
Condition
Allocation - 371,323 (119,779) - - 251,544

73,115,596 5,113,624 (824,316) 65,889 - 77,470,793

Total
Restricted
funds 60,119,420 31,385,237 (28,488,735) - 1,783,000 64,798,922

Total funds 60,432,718 31,419,095 (28,488,735) - 1,783,000 65,146,078
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balancesat 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

Hadley Learning Community

Queensway

Ercall Wood

Charlton

Trust

Wrekin View

Crudgington

Severndale

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund

Pension reserve

Total

2021
£

314,011
234,308
86,112

298,095
509,578
(23,479)
62,042

1,411,420

2,892,087

92,875,804
(28,374,000) (12,731,000)

67,393,891

2020
£

(37,718)
215,742
(39,626)
27,694

337,665
(97,472)

406,285

77,470,793

65,146,078

Wrekin View has a 3 year deficit repayment plan with the ESFA. This will be fully repaid in December
2023, they have madesignificant savings in year and have a surplus 3 year budgetplan with LCT.
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18.

19.

Statementof funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academyduring the year wasasfollows:

 

 

 

Teaching
and

educational Other Othercosts
support support Educational excluding Total Total

staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation 2021 2020
£ £ £ £

Hadley Learning

Community 6,396,238 902,451 322,106 3,373,096 10,993,891 10,465,943

Queensway 1,897,757 91,337 77,158 640,449 2,706,701 2,523,242

Ercall Wood 3,795,712 478,808 262,472 675,174 5,212,166 5,236,017

Chariton 4,305,494 736,898 264,326 896,197 6,202,915 6,127,757

Trust 1,684,632 410,682 57,093 736,433 2,888,840 1,927,300

Wrekin View 1,620,323 145,136 70,310 365,302 2,201,071 1,538,299

Crudgington 312,774 29,963 20,390 113,002 476,129 -

Severndale 3,258,997 1,042,611 224,973 675,375 5,201,956 -

Trust 23,271,927 3,837,886 1,298,828 7,475,028 35,883,669 27,818,558

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds- current year

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 92,232,905 92,232,905

Current assets 354,849 5,778,883 642,899 6,776,631

Creditors due within one year - (3,217,480) - (3,217,480)

Creditors due in more than one year - (24,165) - (24,165)

Provisionsforliabilities and charges - (28,374,000) - (28,374,000)

Total 354,849 (25,836,762) 92,875,804 67,393,891
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19.

20.

Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds- prior year

 

 

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 77,165,776 77,165,776

Current assets 347,156 2,410,079 305,017 3,062,252

Creditors due within one year - (2,254,697) - (2,254,697)

Creditors due in more than one year - (96,253) - (96,253)

Provisionsforliabilities and charges - (12,731,000) - (12,731,000)

Total 347,156 (12,671,871) 77,470,793 65,146,078

Reconciliation of net incometo net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020
£ ze

Net incomefor the year (as per statementoffinancialactivities) 5,307,813 2,930,360

Adjustmentsfor:

Depreciation 898,402 670,179

Defined benefit pension schemeobligation inherited 11,160,000 737,000

(Increase)/decreasein debtors (1,210,861) 559,789

Increasein creditors 1,903,073 195,394

Dividends,interest and rents from investments (531) (2,261)

Assets received on conversion (15,801,406) (4,651,000)

FRS102 Pension Cost 1,423,000 900,000

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,679,490 1,339,461
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21.

22.

23.

Cashflows from investing activities

Dividends,interest and rents from investments

Purchaseof tangible fixed assets

Loss on disposalof tangible fixed assets

Net cash usedin investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cashin hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changesin net debt

At1
September

2020
£

Cashat bank and in hand 2,234,569

2,234,569

2021
£

531
(164,682)

558

(163,593)

2021
£

5,750,466

5,750,466

Cashflows
£

3,515,897

3,515,897

2020
£

2,261
(69,359)

(67,098)

2020
£

2,234,569

2,234,569

At 31
August

2021
£

5,750,466

5,750,466
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24. Conversion to an academytrust

On 01/01/21 Crudgington Primary School converted to academytrust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets andliabilities were transferred to Learning Community Trust
from Telford & Wrekin Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
financial activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on
conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets andliabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statementoffinancialactivities.

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds
£ £ £

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings - 1,125,000 1,125,000

Current assets

Surplus balance 83,126 - 83,126

DFC on conversion - 4,635 4,635

Non-currentliabilities

Pension Deficit (294,000) - (294,000)

Net(liabilities)/assets (210,874) 1,129,635 918,761

 

Page 67



 

LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

25. Pension commitments

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic andrelated staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Mercer. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £500,599 were payable to the schemesat 31 August 2021 (2020 - £355,650)
andare included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies.All teachers havethe option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPSis an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makescontributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS wascarried
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019. The key elementsof the valuation and subsequentconsultation are:

° employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration

levy)

. total schemeliabilities (pensions currently in paymentand the estimated costof future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future

contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million,

giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPErate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current

SCAPErate is 2.4% abovethe rate of CPI, assumedreal rate of return is 2.4% in excessof prices

and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The

assumed nominalrate of return including earnings growthis 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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25. Pension commitments (continued)

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £4,112,797 (2020 - £2,378, 456).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/201 9/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Underthe definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Trust has accounted forits contributions to the schemeasif it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £1,685,000
(2020 - £1,054,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,329,000 (2020 - £828,000) and
employees' contributions totalled £ 356,000 (2020 - £226,000). The agreed contribution rates for future
years are 16.1 per cent for employers and 6 percent for employees.

As described in note 24 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Schemein the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the

Trust at the balance sheetdate.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Schemeliabilities would be met by
the Departmentfor Education. The guarantee cameinto force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2021 2020
% %

Rate of increasein salaries 4.05 3.55

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.9 2.4

Discountrate for schemeliabilities 1.7 1.8

Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.8 2.3

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rates. The assumedlife expectations on retirement age 65 are: .
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25. Pension commitments (continued)

Retiring today

Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years

Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase

CPI rate +0.1%

Pay growth + 0.1%

Share of scheme assets

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash andotherliquid assets

Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on schemeassets was £1,626,000 (2020 - £60,000).

2021
Years

23

25.1

24.3

26.7

2021
£000

27,397

29,789

29,373

28,540

2021
£

8,104,000

3,136,000

557,000

271,000

3,853,000

15,921,000

2020
Years

22.9

25

24.2

26.6

2020
£000

12,333

13,229

13,137

12,816

2020
£

2,368,000

1,083,000

207,000

84,000

1,182,000

4,924,000
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25. Pension commitments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statementof financialactivities are as follows:

2021
£

Current service cost (2,387,000)

Past service cost a

Interest cost (329,000)

Administrative expenses (36,000)

Total amount recognised in the Statementof financialactivities (2,752,000)

Changesin the present value ofthe defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2021
£

At 1 September 17,655,000

Conversion of academytrusts 401,000

Transferred in on existing academiesjoining the trust 18,504,000

Interest cost 508,000

Employee contributions 356,000

Actuarial losses/(gains) 4,507,000

Benefits paid (23,000)

Past service costs -

Current service cost 2,387,000

At 31 August 44,295,000

2020
£

(1,444,000)
(26,000)

(235,000)
(23,000)

(1,728,000)

2020
£

17,300,000
1,126,000

330,000
226,000

(2,804,000)
7,000

26,000
1,444,000

17,655,000
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25.

26.

27.

28.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changesin the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets wereas follows:

2021 2020
£ £

At 1 September 4,924,000 4,423,000

Conversion of academytrusts 107,000 389,000

Transferred in on existing academiesjoining the trust 7,638,000 -

Interest income 179,000 95,000

Actuarial gains/(losses) 1,447,000 (1,021,000)

Employercontributions 1,329,000 828,000

Employeecontributions 356,000 226,000

Benefits paid (23,000) 7,000

Administration expenses (36,000) (23,000)

At 31 August 15,921,000 4,924,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2021 the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020
£ £

Not later than 1 year 53,134 14,460

Later than 1 year and notlater than 5 years 88,021 25,133

141,155 39,593

Otherfinancial commitments

HLC and Queensway schools both have commitments under the PFI schemeuntil 31 March 2033.
The current annual commitment for HLC is £2,640,487.
The current annual commitment for Queenswayis £268,921.

Members'liability

Each memberof the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the companyin the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts andliabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

 

Page 72



 

LEARNING COMMUNITY TRUST

(A companylimited by guarantee)

 

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED31 AUGUST2021

 

29.

30.

Related party transactions

Owingto the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawnfrom local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement proceduresrelating to connected and related party

transactions.

Transfer of existing academies into the trust

Severndale Specialist Academy

Tangible fixed assets

Long-term leasehold property

Furniture and equipment

Plant and machinery

Computer equipment

Motorvehicles

Current assets

Debtors due within one year

Cashat bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors due within one year

Pensions

Pensions - pension schemeassets

Pensions- pension schemeliabilities

Net assets

Value
reported by
transferring Transfer in

trust recognised
£ £

14,207,314 14,207,314

109,299 109,299

19,788 19,788

325,357 325,357

14,648 14,648

752,899 752,899

1,930,270 1,930,270

(796,887) (796,887)

7,638,000 7,638,000
(18,504,000) (18,504,000)

5,696,688 5,696,688
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